
Flag Salute

Presentation TAB A Grays Harbor Homelessness Plan Update

Public Hearing

Mayor Comments

Public Comment

Minutes Tab B 02.13.2019

Approval of Vouchers

Staff Reports Tab C Chris Coker 

Tab D Todd Report

Tab E  Staff Reports

Old Business Tab F Vehicle Purchase

New Business Tab G 3rd Street Utility Trenching

Tab H Sole Source Vaults

Tab I NWPPA Agreement

Ordinances Tab J Truck Roll Fee

Resolutions

Contracts

Mayor/Council Comments

Public Comments

Adjourn/Recess Meeting

Please turn off Cell Phones- Thank you

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accommodation is Provided Upon Request

The City of McCleary is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

La ciudad de McCleary as un proveedor de igualdad de oportunidades y el empleador

McCleary City Council 
Agenda

03/13/19- 6:30PM

Roll Call: ___Pos. 1-Richey, ___ Pos. 2-Huff , ___ Pos. 3- Heller, ___ Pos. 4- Blankenship, ___ Pos. 5- Iversen



TA
B

 -
 A



�������������	��
����������

����������������



���������	��������������

����������		
���

� ��������	
�������	���	�������	�����
�	���	�
�	�������������������	�

� ��	�����	��������	����	
������������
������������	������
�����
�����������������	
�����
��
������������
��
���������

� ���������������	��
�������	��������
��	�����������
�����
����� �

� !"�����#�	
���	���������������	����������	������$�����
������%�&�&�'�	��(�	�������#������������������	��
���	�������	��������	�������������������	�)



����������������������	��
����������

� *��	�������	����������������������������+,��������������	������	��
�������	
����������#����������-�	
�		������������	���
	������
���	�	��

� ���.��	�������/����0	
��
� �12������������	����3���1�
���������,�41���������

� ���15�.�0		���������6���������
� 17���������,�24+�	����	������������������	����,���+����	����������	#����������
��������

����

� ���45�7�89�:�;���
� �12��	�����9�
�����%14<��	
�����
�,���<�������,���<��	���,�4<�
���������)

� ���.�;9�9�;���
� �,�44���������	�����%.1+������������	����,��,�11�
��������	
��=�	
���
����#)



�������������	���	������������������

� /�����������������	�

������������	����	�����
����
� >	�

� ��������%99:,�/!?@,����&)

� A	������������	#��������

������������������	������#�
�	�������
� ������	�����������

� ���

� 0�������=������	�����	��

� �������������������

� :������
���B��������	�#5�����

��	���������������	�
	��������������������	
��#�
�	������

� ?������������	���	����

��
��	������#�������������	�
������	��- �������������	�
�����������	
��#�����

��	��

� ��
�	��������������	�
��������������������	�
���	�
��

���� !!"""#$����"#���!
���
��!���������
��������
�������������%!



&�'������(����
'���
��
��������
���

������
����������
������������

��'�������
�'���
����
���������)��*�
�'����+�



����������	��������������

� ��0�0
������������
����������������7

� A�#�����	��������.����
���������9������	�
�
�����#
�������	�����
�������������
�	��	��������
� 0	��������
�������������������	��

#
�������?	�������+�

� ?���������
���	��������5���2

� A	����������������
������	���������
����	�����������������"����	������
	�C������
� D
������
������	������������,�

��������,���������	��������	���
�	�����������	���	�����,�������������	��
	���	��
���������������
���

���	����	������ ��!	�
�"	��

� E
��"������������������#�#����	����
�$���������#��	������ F

� ���	����B���	��	���	������	
��#��	��
��	���������������#���������F

� 6������������������������	����������
���	����	
��#������������F

� ��	C����	��	�������������	�������
����
�����������������	���
�����	��
�	
��	����	
��������
���������������

����������

� #	��$%&��	�����
����
� �����������
��������#��=������������������������
���	����������#	��������	
����������	����
����





 ������������	��������	�����������������!



 �������������������	�����"	���	��������

��������������������!�

� ��	=�	��������������	����B�� 
� �	����
� 'D��
(������- �&�&���	#����������������#����	�
����	�

� D�������������$��������	��������	
��#�
� ����	�G�����
�������5�������	����- �����
���H
� !��	��������	
��#��
����&��	������	
��#��
��



��������	�
���	����
�������	�������

�������������	���

� %���
���		'��
����((��
����	�	�����������	�(���	�
���
	���
��
�	�����	�
����	���	�
�	�����	�����(	�(�	�
��"�����
���	)���������������	
�����������������
���
���	��������	��������������

� ��������������������
������
	����	��������������
��������������	��������
�����	����
��	������	����
������������	�����������
��	������	����������		��		�

� :�������������
���������- ���'���������*�,����'���
�)��'�

� @
���	��������	���- '����������
�
��'
�������
��������*��������'��

� ����������	�����������#���$����#��
����#�	
�����	�����������"����		��	��
�	������	
��	��

� :��������������������#��������	��
����5�����������
� :��������������������������������#�����
���	�����������

� -��(�������*���
��������*�����'
��������������������������
�'���. *���
����������������'�����
"������������
������
����������
�



�������������	���
�������# $��	��

� *�
	�"	�
����+�(	��0���#	����	����	#���=�������
���#�����	���	��������������G��	�������	���	
��#�
�����������

� ,�
	������-��	�	�������	�=�	
��	�����	������������
�$���������#��	��������&�&�������#�	
����,������,�
����#�����������,��������	���������	���
������������	�,�
	�����������������#�;	������I�	������

� .
�$��'����-��	�	���	������	�����	���
���	�=�	
��	�����	������������������	���������
������
���	��	����	�������	�	������������������������
������������&�&��	
���
����#,������#�������	����������	�����
������,����������$����#��������	�������������	��	
��#�
����,�������
������������	���	�������������������



�������������	���
�������% &����"���	�������

� -��	�	���	���#�	"	�
������	��5������	
��#����	����	�����=	��
������B���	���������- ���=	������	����������������������������
�	�������������������
���	�����������	�����	���#������������	����

� /�"	����������������������#����������������������	
��#�
�����#�����,�����������������	�������#����������������������
�������������������	��������������
����	������������	
��#�

� 0�	�	����1�	�
	�� ��������5�����	��	�����������	
��#�
�������������	���������
��=��������%�&�&��	�����	
����)��	���������
�������	�����	���#�
����������%�����������������	����)�

� $�(���$	����������	#�����������	��
��"����	��������	������	�
���������������	������	����	���������	�����#��	��5������������
��������������������#�������	���������������B���	��

� #	����	�
�1�((��
�"	�-�����������������%	��������	�#5����)�
��	#����������	�������	�5�����������	��������	
��#,������������,�
����
��	��������������	�����������	���
�����������������



��	��	�	'��	����"���	�������

������������	
���	��	�����	��������	

��������	�������������������

���������	�������

�����	��������

���������	����������	������	



�������������	���
�������# �������	���

� 2��
���J������.
� 2����.���
����.5�2
� 3	
	������:������
��=����������	���������������������������
� .���
���:������
���	���	
��	���	�����2
� 4�����	����
��%�����	���@��������������������	�����
�������	���

������%
������.)�
� ,���5����	�������5���
���	������		�����	���$���B�������- �&�&�

�	���	�����
����	����������=	�������������	�����
��	������
������,����	�����=�	
�����	������	#�����,����&

� *���"������ ������	����		���/��	�
���3���	��	�����������	�����
������#�	�����������#��	�������	��������	�����,�������	�	�����
��������,��������"���	
����	��
��	�������	�"

� +�	��(	�
���%���
 6��
��	���"��"	���:������
������	����������
#�
�	
��,�������	�,�	���	��
������	
�����	#�������=	���������
��������#��	�������#����	�������������	�



������������	
���	��	�����	��������	��	����������

��������	�������������������

���������	�������

��������	
�����

���	���
�����������

������	�

�
����������

������������������
��	

���� �������

�
����������

������������������
��	

!	
�"�
����#$��������$����	��%������&������	&��

������	�

�����	��������

���	���
�����������

!	
�"�
����#$��������$����	��%������&������	&�

'����(����&������#)����&���	"��"�


������������������
��	

��������	
�����

�
����������

������	�

���	���
�����������

���	���
�����������

������	�

�
����������

������������������
��	

���������	����������	������	



(�)�������

� 8
�������������#�#��#���"��	����,�#�������#����
���	��
�	��������	���	���	�����,���
��
��,��������	������	��
����������J������������$���
����#�������%/�"�. 0���
����)

� �����
�������
�������!����=D�������
� 0	������������������>
�������



��*������������!
� J������	���	
��#�����������&�������#�&	�#=������	��=�	
��#

� 0	�����	��������#��
�����������>��
���,�!����,�>
��,�����8��	���
� ;	����������	���	���

� !#�����������#��	��������=	���
����������������������������		"��#�
�	���	�
�������	��		"��������������,�	�#���B��
�����,���������������
�����

� J����������	�����������	��������������������#�������
����������
'�		���������	�����(��������	����	�����������		����������	�������	������
���������������������	����������	���������	���������

� :���	
�	��	��	����	
�"�	�����������	��,��	���������������#������
�	�����	���	�����	��	
���	
��	����������&�/�����������	�����	��
����������	��������
����	
�����&
� 0�������#�������	��������������	
��������	����	�#���������	����	����
� D���#���	��@
����	����������#�����	������	������#�
� !������#��	�����������	
��	����	��
����
� *�������������
�����������	
#�����������������



Grays Harbor Homeless System Performance
                                                                                                                                               August 2018 

  For more information, visit HealthyGH.org/directory/housing
All data from Washington State Department of Commerce for reporting period July 2017-June 2018

Our partners provide a variety of housing services to our community.sing serv

Emergency shelters provide 
temporary housing to alleviate the 

immediate crisis of homlessness.

Homelessness Prevention 
includes financial assistance and/
or case management to prevent 
a household from imminent 

homelessness.

Rapid Rehousing quickly 
stabilizes households that are 
actively experiencing homelessness 
with financial assistance and short-

term, intensive case management.
2017-18 2016-17

Households served 98 102

Shelter utilization 59% 51%

2017-18 2016-17

Households served 140 152

Rental vacancy 2.5% 3.8%

2017-18 2016-17

Households served 219 269

Unsheltered 59% 51%

rare,

Households 2017-18 2016-17

Total assessed 453 564

  Single adults 73% 59%

  Families 26% 41%

Total enrolled 113 158

Unmet need 340 406

Together, we are working to make homelessness in Grays Harbor:

brief, and one-time.

Length of time household was 
homeless

2017-18: 54 days 

2016-17: 59 days

Moved into permanent housing
2017-18: 75% 
2016-17:  67%

Increased or maintained income
2017-18: 59% 

2016-17:  69%

d or maintaine

Between July 2017 - June 2018, 

453
homeless households sought 
housing services in
Grays Harbor.

June 2018, 

sought 

Of that total,

73%
were single adults;

26%
were families;

and

113
were enrolled in Rapid Rehousing.





                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                         Regular City Council Meeting

                          Wednesday, February 13, 2019

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmembers Richey, Huff, Heller, Blankenship and Iversen were in attendance.

ABSENT None.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Director of Public Works Todd Baun, Clerk-Treasurer Wendy
Collins, Chief Steve Blumer, Public Works Assistant Josh Cooper and Attorney Chris Coker.

PUBLIC HEARING At 6:31 pm, Mayor Orffer called for an Executive Session to discuss acquisition of real estate
according to RCW 42.30.110(1)(b) to last ten minutes. The Executive Session ended at 6:41
pm.

PUBLIC COMMENTS None.

MAYOR COMMENTS Mayor Orffer thanked all of the City employees for their hard work during the recent snow
storm.

Mayor Orffer met with Representatives Tharinger and Chapman and Senator Van De Wege
over the past couple of weeks and they were very happy to make connections with the City
and are very interested in helping us in any way they can. She told them one thing they could
do for us, would be to remind Grays Harbor County that McCleary is a part of the County and
that there are cities east of the coastal towns that are part of the County, and we too, would
like to have their time and attention. The Representatives were very gracious and
understanding and offered to attend a City Council Meeting to talk with anyone that has
questions for them. They also offered to spend time with staff looking for revenue sources that
could help us. Mayor Orffer stated we have very great team representing us in the State
Legislature and she is happy to have made contact with them.

VOUCHERS Accounts Payable checks approved were 45544 - 45647, including EFT's, in the amount of
$62,960.23.

Payroll checks approved were 45494 - 45500 and 45579 - 45602, including EFT's, in the
amount of $199,079.58.

Bank Reconciliation for January 2019.

It was moved by Councilmember Huff, seconded by Councilmember Richey to approve

the vouchers. Motion Carried 5-0.

MINUTES APPROVED It was moved by Councilmember Richey, seconded by Councilmember Huff to adopt

the minutes from the January 23, 2019 meeting. Motion Carried 5-0.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Chris Coker provided a written report for the Council. 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

Todd Baun reported the crews have been taking care of the removal of snow on the streets
and dealing with power outages. He said they have been doing an awesome job. 

Todd introduced Joshua Cooper who replaced Paul Morrison as the Public Works Assistant.
Josh introduced his wife Colby and her sister Dallas, who were in attendance with him. He
said he is happy to be part of the team and thanked everyone for the opportunity to work for
the City. Todd added that Josh started working last week and has had a crash course with
snow removal and building department plans. It was a crazy week and he had to jump right in.
Mayor Orffer welcomed Josh and said she is very happy to have him aboard and thanked him
for being a part of our team.

Councilmember Iversen asked how the roof was coming along on the museum. Todd
responded by stating the main house is completed, with the exception of the small porches
and the garage still needs to be done. The Public Works and Light and Power crews did a
great job.



Chief Blumer showed the Council the new city logo patches he had made for the police
uniforms. The bear is clearer and they are a bit more modern and he is happy with the
outcome. 

The two new police cars arrived and Chief Blumer showed the Council one of the cars, which
he parked outside the council room window. The logo on the side of the car is a hologram that
stands out at night when the lights shine on it.

Chief Blumer also reported that the McCleary Police Department has been supporting other
agencies with the roll over accidents and collisions caused by the snow. There were multiple
snow related incidents and all agencies worked together to respond and offer support to each
other.

POLICE CHIEF REPORT Chief Blumer provided a written staff report for the Mayor and Council.

TRUCK ROLL FEE Certain customers request for their water to be turned on and off multiple times per month. To 
perform this, there is a cost to the city for crew members to perform the task and for the truck 
to roll out to the location. The city is asking the Council to consider a truck roll fee to cover the 
cost for customers turning on and off their utilities for their convenience. These customers 
want the utilities off to prevent paying a regular monthly utility bill. When they want to work on 
the home, they want the utilities on for only a day or two and then they want them turned back 
off. Staff suggests a charge of $50 for this service during regular city hours and a $150 charge 
for after hours. Chris Coker provided a resolution that was not in the packet so it will be 
provided at the next meeting for Council consideration.

VEHICLE PURCHASE It was moved by Councilmember Blankenship, seconded by Councilmember Iversen to 

authorize the purchase of a one ton truck in the amount of $76,926.06, including tax. It 

was budgeted for a total of $80,000. Motion Carried 5-0.

6TH STREET SURVEY It was moved by Councilmember Iversen, seconded by Councilmember Heller to 

authorize the Mayor to sign the contract for Gray & Osborne to furnish the engineering 

services as requested by the City in connection with the Survey of South 6th Street 

(from Maple to Hemlock) as presented in the Contract for Professional Engineering 

Services in the amount of $7,000. Motion Carried 5-0.

TENELCO CONTRACT The contract with Tenelco Inc. expired on August 18, 2018 for bio solids transport and 
beneficial use. Tenelco proposed a contract extension to August 20, 2020 at a rate of $68.00 
per wet ton hauled, with a minimum load of 25 tons, which is an increase from $52.00 per wet 

ton, effective March 1, 2019. It was moved by Councilmember Richey, seconded by 

Councilmember Huff to authorize the Mayor to sign the contract with Tenelco, Inc. 

Motion Carried 5-0.

UPCOMING PROJECTS Todd Baun gave a brief outline of the upcoming projects for the city.

RESOLUTION 728 FEES AND 
DEPOSTIS FOR PARK KITCHEN 

& COMMUNITY CENTER

Chris Coker worked with Wendy Collins to update the rental fees for the community center
and park kitchen. Currently, there are different rates for smaller groups for the community
center. In an effort to remain fair and consistent, it was decided the best approach is to have a
flat rate for all uses. The exception will be for local funeral/memorials and regularly scheduled
events held on a weekly and monthly basis. The deposits were also adjusted so they were

more consistent. It was moved by Councilmember Blankenship, seconded by

Councilmember Richey to adopt Resolution 724 A RESOLUTION TO THE UTILIZATION

OF CERTAIN MUNICPAL FACILITIES, ESTABLISHING FEES; AND REPEALING

RESLUTION NUMBER 625 AND ANY OTHER RESOUTION IN CONFLICT THEREWITH

and to change the cost for funerals/celebrations of life for McCleary residents to $35.00.

Resolution Adopted 5-0.

MEETING CANCELATION It was moved by Councilmember Richey, seconded by Councilmember Blankenship to

cancel the February 27, 2019 meeting. Motion Carried 5-0.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

PUBLIC COMMENT Councilmember Richey asked if the Council could make a proposal to approve all 3rd Street 
Project Grant items in advance. Chris Coker discouraged it because auditing requirements are 
to have Council approval for all things relating to contracts.

Councilmember Richey asked if he could refuse to be paid for serving on the Council. Chris 
Coker believes he would have to accept his pay and then donate it back to the City but will 
check into it.



Chief Blumer announced he received a grant for radar equipment in the amount of $4310.00.

MEETING ADJOURNED It was moved by Councilmember Iversen, seconded by Councilmember Heller to

adjourn the meeting at 7:47 pm. The next meeting will be Wednesday, March 13, 2019

at 6:30 pm. Motion Carried 5-0.

Approved by Mayor Brenda Orffer and Clerk-Treasurer Wendy Collins.



TA
B

 -
 B



TA
B

 -
 C



Younglove & Coker 
A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

"SINCE 1974" 

1800 COOPER POINT ROAD SW, BLDG 16, PO BOX 7846, OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON 98507-7846 

TELEPHONE (360) 357-7791                           FACSIMILE (360) 754-9268 
OFFICE@YLCLAW.COM 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Memorandum 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council, City of McCleary 

FROM:  Christopher John Coker, City Attorney 

DATE:  March 6, 2019 

RE:  Significant/Interesting Legal Activities as of March 6, 2019. 

 

Generally speaking things remain quiet from a legal perspective within the City.  I’ve reviewed some 

criminal cases for charging decisions at the request of the police department and handled several 

matters for the Director of Public Works such as a sole source resolution for the purchase of precast 

vaults and reviewed docs relating to the sharing of costs and joint use of a utility trench that will be 

opened up during the 3rd Street Project. 

 

Following last months meeting I was asked to look in to the ability of a councilmember to waive or 

forego their pay.  You should have received the results of the research I did and I am available to discuss 

if asked.  Basically, the auditor frowns on it from the risk perspective of an councilperson waiving their 

pay, then, at some point later the councilmember changes their mind and decides they want the pay.  

We then have a potential wage claim issue. 

 

If you have any questions or need any additional information, please do not hesitate to ask or request.  

 

 

 

 

 



TA
B

 -
 D



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Orffer 

From: Todd Baun, Director of Public Works 

Date:  March 6, 2019 

Re: Current Non-Agenda Activity 

 

     

3rd Street Project 

 

Construction is expected to start April 1st.   

 

Beerbower Park Playground  

 

The crew will be installing the new equipment shortly.  It will be a great improvement 

that will benefit the community.  

 

 

City Wide Clean-Up 

 

City wide clean-up is scheduled for April 27th.   

 

 

Tab C 



TA
B

 -
 E



TA
B

 -
 F



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Orffer 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: March 6, 2019 

Re: Vehicle Purchase 

 

 

At the last Council meeting, it was approved to purchase a vehicle for the $76,926.06.  

When I went to order, we had to add an item that is needed to purchase the vehicle and 

also the sales tax is different than what is on the quote.  With these changes, it will raise 

the price about$1,200 dollars.  I’ve reached out to the auditor, and their recommendation 

for future purchases is to put a not to exceed cap for purchases in the future.   

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and allow the Mayor to Purchase order for the vehicle for an amount to not 

exceed the budgeted amount of $80,000.   

Tab F 













TA
B

 -
 G





Page 1 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

JOINT UTILITY TRENCH 

AGREEMENT 
Between t h e  City of McCleary and Parties 

for the South 3rd Street Improvements 
 
 

THIS Agreement is entered into by and between the City of McCleary, a Washington 

municipal corporation,("City"), PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF GRAYS 

HARBOR COUNTY, a Washington municipal corporation (the “PUD”), COMCAST OF 

WASHINGTON IV, INC, a Washington corporation (“Comcast”), and CENTURYLINK 

COMMUNICATIONS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“CenturyLink”) 

ASTOUND BROADBAND, LLC dba Wave, a limited liability company organized under 

the laws of the State of Washington (“Astound”).  (PUD, Comcast, CenturyLink and 

Astound are collectively referred to as “Licensees”) (The City and each of the Licensees 

may be referred to as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City is undertaking a capital improvement project known as the South 3rd 
Street Improvements between East Oak Street and Mox  Chehalis Road. (Hereinafter referred to 
as the "Project"; and  

 
 

WHEREAS, Parties owns and operates  certain utilities located in the S. 3rd Street right- 

of-way  and within and adjacent  to the project  limits of the Project and that Parties have a 

franchise agreement  with the City to operate  in said right-of-way; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the franchise agreement adopted,  the right-of-way 

improvements require Parties to underground its facilities that are currently located above 

ground; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, relocation requires trenching within the right-of-way and the parties 

recognize the efficiencies of  entering into an agreement whereby one trench will be dug for 

all of the parties to relocate their facilities; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, integrating  the Parties work into the City's Project  would be more 

expedient, less expensive, and less disruptive to the public than undertaking both the City's 

and Parties projects  separately; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties mutually desire to establish a formal  arrangement  under 

which Parties will pay the City in exchange  for the City's incorporating Parties work 

into the City's Project; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement  for the purpose of defining 

their respective rights, obligations, costs and liabilities regarding  this undertaking; and 

 



Page 2 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of McCleary has taken appropriate action 
to approve the City's entry into this Agreement; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, Parties has taken appropriate action to approve Parties entry into this 
Agreement; 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and 
performances contained herein, or attached and incorporated and made part hereof, the Parties 
agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

I.   SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
The City will advertise for construction bids and enter into a contract for the construction of a 
trench which shall include power and/or communication facilities for the City, Comcast, Century 
Link, and PUD. This trench will generally be constructed along the both sides of the roadway of 
S. 3rd Street between East Oak Street and Mox Chehalis Road. 
 
 

2.   TERM AND TERMINATION. 
 
 
This Agreement shall commence on April 1st, 2019 and shall continue for a period of 30 (thirty) 
months, unless earlier terminated pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
 
In the event that either party defaults  in the performance of its obligations herein,  notice shall 
be given by the other party of its intent to terminate  the Agreement  for  cause, to be effective  
thirty (30) days thereafter,  unless that cause  is cured within thirty (30) days after such notice. 
 

3.   CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS. 
 
The independent contractor hired by the City to perform this work shall be referred to as "the 
contractor” in this Agreement.    The  contractor,  pursuant   to  a  contract  with  the  City,  shall 
excavate  the  trench,  install City, PUD, Century  Link, and Comcast  facilities,  install the 
bedding material, backfill  and compact the trench,  and perform  any restoration required  by the 
City, all to be performed  in a good and workmanlike  manner consistent  with industry 
standards.   The  City represents  that any such contract  shall further require of contractor  that 
the work be conducted  in conformity  with (i) the applicable procedures  and requirements  of 
the parties as described herein; (ii) all applicable laws, ordinances  and regulations, and;  (iii) all 
applicable terms  and provisions of the National Electric Safety  Code, including but not limited 
to those pertaining  to protection and separation of conductors buried in earth. 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

4.   RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES. 
 
A.  Parties 
 
 

1. Parties  shall  provide  to  the  City, and  assume  full  responsibility  for,  engineering 
drawings,  specifications,  construction standards,  and  quantities  in  accordance   with 
acceptable  industry standards  and City Franchise.   The drawings shall show in detail 
the  location  and  elevation  of  the  conduits,  trench,  and  vaults,  and  shall  include a 
general  traffic  control  plan for  activities not associated with installation of facilities 
within the contractor  controlled joint utility trench area. 

 
2. Parties   shall   be   responsible   for   supplying   all   materials   necessary    for   the 

construction of its new conduit and vault system within the joint utility trench area. 
Parties will deliver all of these materials to the job site for installation by the City or it’s 
City's contractor.  Parties will arrange with the City for any required material storage 
and/or security until the materials are installed. 

 
3. Parties   shall   provide   inspection   services   needed   for   overseeing    the   proper 

installation of its new conduit and vault system within the joint utility trench area. Any 
problems identified during the installation shall be immediately reported to the City.  
Parties shall cooperate in providing timely inspections so that progress of the work is not 
delayed. 

 
4. Final Inspection and Acceptance.    When  Parties  new  conduit  and  vault  system 

within the joint utility trench  area is completed  by the City's contractor, the City will 
provide  Parties  written  notice  of its completion  and  request  Final  Inspection  and 
Acceptance  from  Parties.    Within  seven  (7)  calendar  days  of the  City's  notice, 
Parties  will  complete  a Final  Inspection  of the  new  system.   Parties shall give notice 
of Final Acceptance to the City within three (3) working days of completing the Final 
Inspection.  In the event that Parties determines  that the work has not been completed per 
design, Parties  shall specify  in writing what work remains  to be done or  what   
corrections   need   to  be  made,   also  within   three   (3)  working  days   of completing  
Final  Inspection.    The  City  will  notify Parties  when  such  identified items are  
completed,  where  upon  Parties shall  again commence  Final  Inspection under the 
process set forth  herein.   Parties shall not begin work on the conduit and vault system 
inside or outside of the joint utility trench area, until the Notice of Final Acceptance has 
been provided to the City.    Parties  shall  be  responsible  for  any delay  costs  incurred   
by  the  City  in  the  event   Parties  fails  to  meet  the  Final Inspection and Acceptance 
schedule. 

 
 

5. Schedule for Parties Relocation Work.   Following Parties  Final  Acceptance  of the  new 
conduit  and  vault  system  within the joint utility  trench  area,  Parties will have two (2) 
years to initiate placement of its facilities  and Parties  will  complete  placement  of  
facilities,  make  necessary   cut-overs,  and remove overhead  facilities. 



Page 4 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

 
6. Parties shall provide and install all other conduits, vaults, equipment, and other materials 

necessary to complete the Parties conduit and vault system located outside of the joint 
utility trench area. 

 
7. Parties  will provide  all cables and  labor to  install cables in the  new  conduit  and vault  

system,  labor  to  splice cable,  and  labor to  perform  service  cutover  from  the existing 
system to the newly constructed  system. 

 
8. Parties will perform   cut-over   and transfer   of existing Parties customers   as Franchise 

requires. 
 

9. Parties will notify the City in writing when Parties installation is complete and the system 
has been activated. 

 
10. Parties will remove its existing aerial cables, equipment, and poles in conflict with the 

City's project. 
 

11. Parties  will  be  responsible  for  providing  all  traffic   control  associated  with  the 
pulling of cables  and  associated  equipment,  and  the  removal  of Parties  existing 
facilities.   Traffic control and other permits needed for pulling cables and installing other 
associated equipment will be obtained from the City by Parties. 

 
12. Parties will pay its proportionate share of the joint utility trench costs as described in 

Section 5 of this Agreement. 
 

13. All rights, title, and interest in Parties facilities and associated equipment shall at all times 
remain with Parties.  Parties hereto acknowledge  and agree that Parties shall in no event  
be required  to remove  their  respective,  affected aerial  facilities  prior  to completion of 
the underground facilities  in accordance  with this  Agreement,  and  so long as said 
installation is completed in conformity  with this Agreement. 

 
14. Parties   shall   maintain   continued   coordination   with   the   City   regarding    the 

installation of Parties facilities.  This coordination shall include but not be limited to the 
following: 

 
a. Parties’ representatives shall attend the pre-construction meeting.  
b. Parties’ representatives shall provide timing of when and where its materials will 

be delivered to the job site. 
c. Parties shall coordinate with other utility companies included in the joint utility 

trench. This may include the stacking of conduits with another utility, and 
locating conduits below or around other vaults. 

 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

B. City 

 
1. The City shall prepare drawings and specifications for excavation of the joint utility 

trench. The City will advertise for bids, evaluate bids, award a contract, and monitor 
Contractor’s activities. 

 
2. The City's contract shall provide for all necessary excavation, bedding, backfill, off- site 

disposal, and site restoration for the joint utility trench project, along with the 
coordination of other utilities participating in the joint utility trench project.  The City 
shall be reimbursed by Parties for Parties proportionate share of the joint utility trench 
costs as described in Section 5 of this Agreement. 

 
3. The City shall install Parties provided vault and conduit materials necessary for the 

supporting structure within the joint utility trench area.  Upon completion of the new 
conduit and vault system within the joint utility area, the City will proof the duct and 
leave a pull-rope in place.  The City shall be reimbursed by Parties for the costs of 
installing the parties provided materials as described in Section 5 of this Agreement. 

 
4. The City's contractor shall provide all flagging and traffic control for the joint utility 

trench excavation and backfilling activity.  The City shall be reimbursed by Parties for 
Parties proportionate share of flagging and traffic control costs associated with the joint 
utility trench construction as described in Section 5 of this Agreement. 

 
5. The City shall document quantities as its contractor proceeds with excavation, 

installation, and backfill and will provide detailed invoices to Parties for work undertaken 
in connection with this Agreement. 

 
6. The City shall maintain continued coordination with Parties regarding the installation of 

Parties facilities.  This coordination shall include but not be limited to the following: 
a. The City's representatives shall attend the pre-construction meeting.  
b. The City's representatives shall attend weekly construction meetings. 
c. The   City  shall  provide  Parties   a  copy  of  the  Contractor's   proposed   work 

schedule  showing  date,  location,  and  extent  of  work  to  be  performed.     
This schedule shall be subject to change at any time. 

d. Parties shall be given ten (10) days’ notice that City's Contractor is beginning 
construction. 

 
7. After completion of the project, the City shall provide Parties “as-built" drawings. Upon 

receipt  of the  as-built drawings, Parties shall have  ten  (10)  calendar  days review  and  
comment  on  the  as-built drawings  and  to  accept  or  reject  the  as-built drawings.  If 
Parties does not provide comments on the as-built drawings within the ten (10) day 
period set forth above, the as-built drawings shall be deemed accepted by Parties. 

 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

5.   COST ALLOCATION. 
 
Exhibit A, attached to this Agreement, is an estimate of Parties proportionate share of the joint 
utility trench   costs.  The costs shown on Exhibit A are an estimate only.  The   final breakdown  
of costs  will be  based  on  the  actual  quantities  of  work  performed   by  the  City's Contractor 
times the contract  unit costs for each work item. 
 

A.  Joint Utility Trench Costs. 

 
 
Parties agrees to pay  the  City a portion of the joint  utility trench costs,  including 
trench, bedding, and backfill, commensurate  with its proportionate  share of trench usage 
as shown in Exhibit  A attached  hereto  and incorporated by this reference.  Trench costs 
will be finalized after completion of construction and Parties agrees to pay the City for 
actual construction costs. 
 

B.  Conduit and Vault Installation. 

 
Parties  agrees to pay for  the excavation, site preparation,  and installation for  their 
conduit and vaults that are outside the joint utility trench  area  separately and in addition 
to any joint utility trench costs, survey  costs, and traffic  control  costs discussed herein.  
These additional costs shall be preliminarily determined from the bid price accepted by 
the City.  The cost to excavate for and install Parties vaults will be finalized after 
completion of construction, and Parties agrees to pay the City for actual construction 
costs. 
 

C.  Street Crossings. 

 
Parties agrees to pay the City for the installation costs for the City to install Parties 
conduits in street crossings.   These costs are in addition to the joint utility trench costs 
outlined in Section 5.A. 
 

D.  Survey. 

 
Parties agrees to pay the reasonable costs for the contractor’s surveyor to provide vault 
locations and elevations and any other survey data that may be required to locate and 
place Parties facilities. 
 

E.   Traffic Control. 

 
Parities  agrees  to  pay  the  City  a portion  of  the  traffic   control  costs  associated  
with  the construction  of the joint  utility trench,  commensurate  with its proportionate  
share of trench usage as shown in Exhibit A attached  hereto and incorporated  by this 
reference. 
 

F.  Administration Costs. 



Page 7 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

 
Parties agrees to reimburse the City for Parties share of the City's project administration 
and management costs.    
 

G.  Additional Expenses. 

 
Parties agrees  to pay their proportionate share of any  additional expenses  incurred due 
to Parties approved  change  requests,  in providing  the  trench  due  to  any  over-
excavation required or any other unforeseen  conditions attributable to Parties facilities, 
including any additional trench  width or depth  attributable  to  errors  in Parities’  design 
or conflicts  not accounted  for  in Parties design, and to  dewatering  for  ground  water.   
Any changes to Parties portion of work perceived as necessary by the City's contractor 
must be approved by Parties in advance.   Parties will not pay for any share of additional 
expenses incurred due solely to approved change requests from other joint utility trench 
users and/or the City. 
 

H.   Claims by Contractor. 

 
Parties agrees  to pay the  entire  cost of any  claims made by the  City's  contractor that 
are proximately  caused  by  Parties.    These claims may include delays caused by Parties 
installing their facilities, delays caused by Parties providing and delivering their 
materials, or any other conflicts, claims, liens or lawsuits between the City’s contractor 
and Parties. These claims must be verifiable or substantiated claims and be subject to 
binding arbitration. 
 

I.   Invoice. 

 
Parties agrees  to  pay  the  City  within  thirty  (30) days  of being invoiced  by the  City  
for amounts  that the City has been invoiced by the contractor for  work that  has been 
completed by the contractor  and approved  by Parties and  which Parties has agreed  to 
pay under this Agreement. 
 

J.     Defective or Unauthorized Work. 
 
Per the terms of the Contract between the City and its contractor, Parties reserves the 
right to withhold payment from the City for any defective or unauthorized work 
performed by the contractor.   Defective  or unauthorized  work includes, without 
limitation:  work and materials that  do not conform  to  the  requirements  of  this  
Agreement,  and  extra  work  and  materials furnished  without  Parties approval.    If for 
any reason it is necessary to satisfactorily complete any portion of the work, Parties may 
complete the work using its own means. 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

K. Final Payment/Waiver of Claims. 

 
The  making  of  final  payment  by  the  parties  shall  constitute  a  waiver  of claims by  
the contractor,  except  those  previously  and properly  made  and identified by  the  
contractor  as unsettled at the time request for final payment is made. 
 

L.  Withdrawal from Agreement. 

 
Should Parties elect not to participate in the joint utility trench, it will be the 
responsibility of  Parties  to  relocate  its  facilities  for  the  project  within thirty  (30)  
days  of  the  City's contractor's completion of the joint utility trench.   Parties’ new 
facilities must be located in the public right-of-way and construction of these facilities 
can in no way delay the City's contractor.   Parties shall be held liable for any delay to the 
City's project due to Parties utility work.   The City cannot accept delays in the schedule 
due to Parties electing not to participate in the joint utility trench. 

 
6.    CHANGES. 
 
 
After  the  City executes  a contract  with  the  Contractor, Parties  shall  submit  any  changes 
requested to be performed by the  City's contractor to the City.   The  City shall submit this to the 
contractor; obtain  a price  from  the  contractor to  perform the  work,  and  notify  Parties  of  
this price.   Prices supplied by the contractor for Parties change orders shall be in conformance 
with the 25% limit in subsection   1-04.6 of the WSDOT Standard Specifications.   Parties  shall  
have 24 hours  from  receiving  the  price  from  the  City within  which  to respond.    If Parties 
chooses not to accept the contractor's price then  this work  shall  only be performed by Parties  
according to  a mutually  agreed  upon  schedule  with  the  City's  contractor so  as  not  to  cause  
delay  to  the contractor. 
 
 
7.     INDEMNIFICATION; LIENS; ENCUMBRANCES AND LIABILITY. 
 
 
Each  party  shall  defend,   indemnify and hold  the  other  party,  its officers, officials,  
employees and agents  harmless  from  any  and  all claims,  injuries,  damages,  losses or suits 
including  all  legal costs  and  attorney fees,  to  the  extent they  arise  from  or  in  connection 
with:  (a)  fault,  willful misconduct,   or   negligence   of   the    indemnifying   party,    its   
officers,   employees,   agents, subcontractors  and/or  representatives; (b)  any  product liability  
claims  relating to  any  material supplied by the  indemnifying party  under  this  Agreement; (c) 
failure  of the  indemnifying party, its officers,  employees,  agents, subcontractors and/or 
representatives to comply  with any  term  of this  Agreement, City Franchise or  any  applicable 
local,  state,  or  federal law;  (d)  claims under  workers'  compensation or similar  employee 
benefit  acts  by the  indemnifying party  or  its employees, agents, subcontractors, or 
subcontractors'  employees or agents. 
 



Page 9 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4 .24. 
115 , then,  in the  event  of  liability  for  damages arising  out  of bodily  injury to persons  or 
damages   to  property caused   by  or  resulting   from  the  concurrent negligence of  the  parties,  
its officials, employees  and  agents,   a party's liability  hereunder shall  be only  to  the  extent  
of the party's  negligence.    The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 
 
No party,  directly or indirectly, shall create  or impose  any lien on the property  of another,  or 
on  the  rights  or title relating  thereto,  or any  interest  therein,  or  in this  Agreement.    Each  
party shall promptly,  at its own  expense,  take  such  action  as  may be necessary  to duly 
discharge any lien created by it on the property of another. 
 
Except   as  expressly  provided  herein,   NEITHER  PARTY   SHALL  BE  LIABLE  TO  THE 
OTHER     FOR    ANY     INCIDENTAL,     INDIRECT,    SPECIAL    OR    
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES   OF  ANY  KIND,  INCLUDING   BUT  NOT  LIMITED  
TO  ANY  LOSS  OF  USE, LOSS OF  BUSINESS  OR  LOSS OF  PROFIT;  provided, 
however,  there  shall  be no  limitation on  a party's  liability to the  other  for  any  fines or 
penalties  imposed  on  the other party  by  any court of competent  jurisdiction  or federal,  state  
or local administrative agency resulting  from  the failure  of the party  to comply with any term  
or condition of this Agreement  or any valid and applicable law, rule or regulation. 
 
8.    INSURANCE. 
 
 
The  contract  between  the  City and the  Contractor  shall require that the  Contractor  procure 
and maintain for  the duration of the project insurance of the types and in the amounts described 
below against claims for  injuries  to persons or damage  to property which may arise from or in 
connection  with the  performance   of  the  work  by  the  Contractor,   its  agents,  
representatives, employees, sub consultants or subcontractors. 
 

A.  Automobile Liability 
 
Insurance with limits no less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage; and 
 

B.   Commercial General Liability 

 
 
Insurance written on an occurrence basis with limits no less than $1,000,000 single limit 
per occurrence and $2,000,000 general aggregate for personal injury, bodily injury and 
property damage.      Coverage   shall  include  but  not  be  limited to:  blanket  
contractual; products/completed   operations/broad    form    property    damage;   
explosion,   collapse   and underground  (XCU);   and   employer's   liability  or   Stop  
Gap   coverage    under   workers' compensation  insurance. 
 
 



Page 10 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

C.  Excess Liability 

 
Insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and aggregate. 
 
Any payment of deductible or self-insured retention shall be the sole responsibility of the 
City’s contractor.     The   Parties,  their  officials,   employees,   agents   and  volunteers   
shall  be designated as additional  insureds  on the insurance  policy, as respects  work 
performed by or on behalf of the Parties  under  this  Agreement  and  a copy of the  
endorsement,  or its equivalent, designating  the  Parties as  additional  insured  shall  be 
attached  to  the  Certificate  of Insurance, copies of which shall be provided  to the 
Parties prior to commencement  of construction by the City's contractor.   The  
contractor's  insurance  shall contain a clause stating that coverage  shall apply  separately 
to  each  insured  against whom  claim is made or  suit is brought,  except  with respects 
to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

 
9.    FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. 
 
 
The  City and  Parties  agree  that  as  to  future  projects,  by  entering  into  this  Agreement, 
neither party has waived any rights it may have under the existing franchise agreements  between 
the   City   and   Parties,   and   the  City  and   parties  expressly  herein   reserve   such  rights. 
Notwithstanding  anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Parties participation in the joint 
utility  trench   activity  contemplated  in  this  Agreement,   and  its  very   participation   in  this 
Agreement,  shall in no event be construed as acceptance,  affirmation, or ratification of the 
City's construction  of Parties  obligation to  underground  and  enter  into a writing pursuant  to  
the franchise   agreement,  and  parties  understand  and  agree  that  the  terms  and  conditions  
of  this Agreement  shall not be considered  as  a basis for  future  undergrounding projects  that  
may  be franchise required. 
 

10.  MISCELLANEOUS. 

 

A. Compliance  with Laws 

 
The   parties  shall  comply   with  all  applicable  federal,   state   and  local  laws,  rules  
and regulations throughout every  aspect in the performance of this Agreement. 

 

B. Non waiver of Breach 

 
The  failure  of  a party  to  insist  upon  strict  performance  of  any  of  the  terms  and  
rights contained herein,  or to  exercise  any option herein  conferred in one or more  
instances,  shall not be constructed  to be a waiver or relinquishment of those terms and 
rights and they  shall remain  in full force  and effect. 

 
 
 
 



Page 11 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

C. Governing  Law 

 
This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Washington.  If any dispute arises between the parties or between any party and the 
contractor under any of the provisions of this Agreement, resolution of that dispute shall 
be available only through the jurisdiction, venue and rules of the Grays Harbor Superior 
Court, Grays Harbor, Washington. 

 

D. Attorney’s Fees 

 
To the extent not inconsistent with RCW 39.04.240, in any claim or lawsuit for damages 
arising from the parties’ performance of this Agreement, each party shall be responsible 
for payment of its own legal costs and attorney’s fees incurred in defending or bringing 
such claim or lawsuit; however, nothing in this subsection shall limit a party's right to 
indemnification under Section 7 of this Agreement. 

 

E. Written Notice 

 
All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the addresses 
listed on the signature page of this Agreement, unless otherwise notified.  Any written 
notice shall become effective upon delivery, but in any event three (3) calendar days after 
the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given 
if sent to the addressee at the address stated on this Agreement. 

 

F. Modification 

 
No waiver,  alteration,  or  modification of any  of the provisions of this  Agreement  
shall be binding  unless  in writing  and  signed  by a duly  authorized  representative  of 
each  affected party. 

 

G. Severability 

 
If any  one or  more  sections,  sub-sections,  or  sentences  of this Agreement  are held  to  
be unconstitutional  or invalid, that decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portion of this Agreement and the remainder shall remain  in full force and effect. 

 

H. Relationship 
 

It  is  understood  and  agreed   that  no  agency,  employment,  joint  venture,  co-
employer  or partnership is created  by this Agreement.   No party hereto shall have the 
power or authority to act for another in any manner to create obligations or debts which 
would be binding upon another, and be responsible for any obligation or expense 
whatsoever of another. 
 
 

 



Page 12 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

I. Force Majeure 

 
Parties  shall  not be  deemed  to  be in  breach  of  this  Agreement  if unable  to  perform   
their respective  obligations hereunder  as a result of the occurrence  of an event of "force  
majeure," which  shall include,  but not be limited to, acts of God, acts of the government  
of the United States or of any state or political subdivision  thereof,  strikes,  civil riots or 
disturbances,  fire, floods,   explosions,   earthquakes,   wind,    storms,   hurricanes,   
lightning   or   other   similar catastrophes or other  causes  beyond  the parties'  
reasonable  control.  The scope of events of force majeure shall not extend to payment of 
money owed hereunder. 

 

J. Disclosure 

 
Both parties agree that, to the extent allowable under RCW Chapter 42.17 [public 
disclosure act], all information with respect to this Agreement will be kept confidential 
and will be used for internal company purposes only. Neither  party shall, without the 
prior written consent  of the other party: (a) issue any press release  or make any other 
public announcement  regarding this  Agreement  or  any  relation   between   the   City  
and  Parties;  or  (b)  use  the  name, trademarks,  or other proprietary identifying symbol 
of the other  party  or its affiliates.  Such consent by Parties may be given only by the 
Executive Vice President of Corporate Communications or his or her designee.    Any 
purported   consent by any other person, including any Parties sales or customer service 
representative, is void and of no effect. 

 

K. Assignment 

 
Neither party shall assign this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations hereunder 
without the prior written consent of the other, which consent will not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed.  Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,   either  may  assign  all  or part  of  
this Agreement immediately,  without  the  prior  written  consent  of  the  other  party  
(a)  to  any  entity  that controls, is controlled  by, or is  in common  control  with a party  
or (b) to any successor  in interest  to a party  or  (c)  if necessary  to satisfy  the  rules, 
regulations  and/or  orders  of any federal, state or local governmental  agency or body.                                    
· 

 

L. Entire Agreement 

 
 

The  written  provisions  and  terms  of  this Agreement,   together  with  any  attached  
Exhibits, supersede all prior verbal  statements  by any representative of the City, and 
those statements shall not be construed  as forming a part of or altering in any manner 
this Agreement.   This Agreement  and  any  attached   Exhibits  contain  the  entire  
Agreement  between  the  parties. Should any language in any Exhibit to this Agreement 
conflict with any language contained in this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall 
prevail. 

 



Page 13 of 13 
 

Joint Utility Agreement 
City of McCleary 
South 3rd Street Improvements 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties below have executed this Agreement 
 
 
Comcast of Washington     City of McCleary 

 
 
X    X      
    
 
Print Name:      Print Name:     
  
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
Date:       Date:      
 
 
 

CenturyLink Broadband     Grays Harbor PUD #1 

 
 
X    X      
    
 
Print Name:      Print Name:     
  
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
Date:       Date:      
 
 

Astound Broadband     ATTEST: 

 
 
X       X      
       Wendy Collins, City Clerk-Treasurer 
       City of McCleary 
Print Name:         
 
 
Title:        
 
 
Date:        



TA
B

 -
 H



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Orffer 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: March 6, 2019 

Re: Sole Source 

 

 

Sole Source Purchases 

RCW 39.04.280(1)(a) allows agencies to waive competitive bidding if a purchase 
is clearly and legitimately limited to a single supplier. These situations often arise 
when an agency has specific technological requirements. Examples include: 

 Licensed, copyrighted, or patented products or services that only one 
vendor provides 

 New equipment or products that must be compatible with existing 
equipment or products 

 Proprietary or custom-built software or information systems that only one 
vendor provides 

 Products or services where only one vendor meets the required 
certifications or statutory requirements 

Agencies should base these decisions on an objective review of the required 
product or service, making sure to document why that particular product or 
service is mandatory and whether efforts were made to find other vendors. 

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and allow the Mayor to signed the Resolution for the sole source of utility 

vaults form Old Castle for the Light and Power.     

Tab H 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=39.04.280




 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 1                CITY OF McCLEARY            

3/6/19                    100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SOLE SOURCE 

ACQUISITION OF OLDCASTLE PRECAST ELECTRIC 

VAULTS AND MAKING FINDINGS IN RELATION 

THERETO. 

 

 

RECITALS 

 

1. The City of McCleary maintains a Light and Power Department within the course 

of its operation.  

2. Within the course of that operation, the City has previously acquired vaults for use 

by it’s Light and Power Department. 

3. The City needs to purchase electric vaults for its use throughout the City. 

4. Pursuant to a general direction give by the Council, the Public Works Director has 

undertaken a review of the desired characteristics and costs of previous vaults. 

5. The Mayor and Council have received from the Public Works Director a 

recommendation that it undertake a sole source acquisition process for the purchase of concrete 

vaults from Oldcastle Precast for the following reasons: 

a. The City has previously used and is currently using Oldcastle Precast for vaults 

for use by its Light and Power Department. 

b. The vaults and lids are unique and noninterchangeable between various vault 

providers. 



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 2                CITY OF McCLEARY            

3/6/19                    100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

c. It is the Director of Public Works’ opinion that the use of non-compatible 

electrical vaults throughout the City will result in increased costs and potential 

safety issues associated with said vaults. 

d. The negotiated price is within current funding for the department. 

6. RCW 35.23.352(9) authorizes sole source purchasing without calling for bids. 

7. It has been and continues to be the desire and intention of the Mayor and Council 

to utilize the public bidding process to enhance the value received by the citizens but, under the 

circumstances of this particular matter, it is recognized as being appropriate to make a specific 

designation. 

8. Utilizing a competitive bidding process would likely only produce one bid. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS BY THE CITY COUNCIL    

OF THE CITY OF McCLEARY, THE MAYOR SIGNING IN AUTHENTICATION   

THEREOF: 

 SECTION I:  Those recommendations and factual statements made by the Director of the 

Public Works Department shall be and are hereby adopted as Findings of Facts. 

 SECTION II: The City hereby declares Oldcastle Precast the sole supplier for the required 

and desired vaults and authorizes the Public Works Department and its personnel to undertake 

negotiations with Oldcastle Precast for the purchase of vaults, it being found this is the desired 

equipment and would fully satisfy the conditions referenced above. 

PASSED THIS _____ DAY OF MARCH, 2019, by the City Council of the City of 

McCleary, and signed in authentication thereof this _____ day of March, 2019.  

CITY OF McCLEARY: 

 



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 3                CITY OF McCLEARY            

3/6/19                    100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

BRENDA ORFFER, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

WENDY COLLINS, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

CHRISTOPHER JOHN COKER, City Attorney 



TA
B

 -
 I



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Orffer 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: March 6, 2019 

Re: NWPPA 

 

 
This is something that I have been looking into joining for quite a long time now.  I 

believe being part of the NWPPA will help the City and staff.  Below, are some 

information about NWPPA and some of the things their membership would provide.    

 
Northwest Public Power Association (NWPPA) is a not for profit association of over 150 

public/people’s utility districts, electric cooperatives, municipalities and crown corporations 

in the Western U.S. and Canada. 

NWPPA also serves the networking needs of over 300 Associate Members across the U.S. 

and Canada who are allied with the electric utility industry. 

NWPPA was founded in 1941 to serve the collective interests of cooperatives, public and 

people’s utility districts, municipalities and mutual public power utilities throughout the 

Northwest, including Alaska and British Columbia. As a not-for-profit membership 

organization, once a utility joins, all employees of that utility may participate in the 

Associations’ programs. 

Training 
NWPPA is a premier workforce development and education provider for public power in the 

Northwest. Each year NWPPA trains thousands of employees and board members offering 

over 200 training events, workshops, and conferences. The Association keeps abreast of its 

member training needs through a member-driven committee structure. Courses are offered in 

most functional utility operation areas, including engineering, operations, customer service, 

accounting, and leadership. Webinars are offered for members throughout the year covering 

current events and issues in the utility industry. In addition, NWPPA offers board and 

management training to meet the demands of operating a utility on behalf of a utility’s 

constituency. NWPPA’s four major conferences, issue forums, and Annual Meeting are 

recognized as some of the best topical and timely events in support of public power offered 

anywhere in the country. 

Committees and Task Forces 
Run by members, each of our committees and task forces covers a specific topic area. 

NWPPA’s committees, and roundtables are a key components of your utility’s employee 

succession plan. These groups offer members an opportunity to participate in the 

development of training and new services and products; members also share ideas and 

experiences. Where better to learn about working with diverse groups of people, broadening 

horizons with outside industry-related committee assignments, learning skills chairing 

committees, and contributing something back to the industry? Current committees are: 

Government Relations; Information Technology; Power Supply; Customer Service, Credit 

and Collections; Power Supply; Administrative Assistant; Alaska Utility Conference; 

Tab H 



STAFF REPORT 

March 19, 2011 

Residential Exchange Program 

Page 2 of 3 

 

Engineering & Operations; and Northwest Communication & Energy Innovations. Task 

Forces include the Environmental Task Force. 

Publications 
Members receive the region’s only industry-specific monthly magazine. The Bulletin is a 

full-color magazine packed with industry- and member-related features, rotating topic-

specific columns, updates, personnel changes, job opportunities, and news about NWPPA 

events. NWPPA also produces the annual Northwest Electric Utility Directory. It is a 

comprehensive guide that includes important information about utilities in the region; 

Associate Members listings, including a Products and Services Guide; government agencies; 

and energy-related trade associations. The Association publishes a weekly eBulletin 

electronic newsletter with up-to-date information about the utility industry delivered right to 

your inbox each Monday afternoon. 

 

Federal Legislative Representation and Coordination 
While statewide organizations focus on legislative efforts affecting their respective states, 

NWPPA represents its members on regional issues at the federal level. We employ a local 

and federal lobbyist to represent our members’ interests in Washington, D.C., working 

closely with NWPPA’s Government Relations Committee. We sponsor an annual face-to-

face trip to Washington, D.C., and we hold meetings with association leaders to coordinate 

federal legislative activities. Each year the membership passes resolutions which become 

NWPPA’s membership position on energy issues affecting the region and the industry. These 

public power resolutions communicate our members’ positions to legislators and other 

important audiences and interest groups. As a member, you have the opportunity to propose 

resolutions and vote on these important resolutions. 

NWPPA and the Public Power Council (PPC) co-sponsor a grassroots political advocacy 

program called People Power. The program encourages utilities to develop a grassroots 

database of utility customers that can weigh in with elected officials on specific issues of 

interest to public power and the Northwest. A website has been established for this grassroots 

effort at www.pplpwr.org and is maintained by NWPPA staff. 

NWPPA utility members have full access to a variety of issue alerts, reference materials, and 

related resources to help them with materials to distribute to their customers and legislators 

on key public power issues. 

Surveys 
Information is power, and in today’s environment having the right information is critical to 

success. The Association gathers information and distributes the aggregated results to 

members by conducting annual wage and benefit surveys of its membership. 

Cooperative Programs to Meet Specific Member Needs 
NWPPA provides services for a fee to groups of utilities that want to work cooperatively on 

certain programs. These service-for-fee programs include the NWPPA Labor & Employee 

Relations Group, a group comprised of labor relations experts of both public and private 

utilities. They meet to discuss employee/management issues in the workplace. 



STAFF REPORT 

March 19, 2011 

Residential Exchange Program 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and allow the Mayor to signed the agreement for joining the NWPPA.  



Data Year 2017

Retail kWh sales of 18,212,073

# of Electric Meters 1,100

# of Electric Employees (FTE) 6

2. Apply Billing Determinant Rates:

Base Fee 1,000.00           

0.024 MWh Rate =  437.09              

0.320 Meter Rate =  352.00              

40.00 Employee Rate =  240.00              

Subtotal $2,029.09

3. Apply Billing Determinant Cap:

Base Fee $1,000.00

80% MWh Rate =  $437.09

70% Meter Rate =  $352.00

25% Employee Rate =  $240.00

$2,029.09

***Maximum investment is 30,000.00$  

WA

1. List electric operating Kwh from retail sales to ultimate electric 

consumer (not for resale); number of electric meters; and number of 

Total***  

NORTHWEST PUBLIC POWER ASSOCIATION
MEMBERSHIP DUES & SUBSCRIPTION FEE

CALENDAR YEAR 2019

COMPUTATION FORM

City of McCleary

McCleary



TA
B

 -
 J



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Orffer 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: February 4th, 2019 

Re: Truck Roll fee 

 

 

The City has been having customers turning their utilities on and off several times during 

a billing cycle.  They are doing this to try save money on their utility bill.  This causes 

additional costs for the city by having the crew go to the location several times a month 

and also causes additional paper work for the Utility Accountant, who has to correctly 

calculate the bill with the several requests for the turn off/on. 

 

We currently do not have a fee associated with these turn off/on and since we are starting 

to have customers take advantage of this, we would like to establish a fee for customer 

convenience re-connection during normal business hours and update our after hour’s re-

connection fee 

 

Lori Ann and I have been researching the voluntary reconnection fee is somewhere in the 

area of $20-$50 during normal business hours. That is why we are proposing the $50 fee 

during the normal business hours and the $150 after hour’s fee.   

 

Here is our MMC below.   

 

13.04.220 Fees. 

A verbal or written request for any discontinuance or turn-on of water service to a 

premises for the convenience of the occupant or owner shall be subject to the payment of 

such fee, if any, as may be established by resolution of the council. 

 

(Ord. 742 § 16, 2007: Ord. 519 § 22, 1987) 

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and allow the Mayor to sign the Resolution.       

Tab  



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 1      CITY OF McCLEARY            
02/04/2019                 100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        
CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

 
 
 

Resolution No. ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION RELATING TO PUBLIC SERVICES; 
ESTABLISHING AND CONFIRMING FEES IN RELATION 
TO VERBAL AND WRITTEN CUSTOMER REQUESTS FOR 
DISCONTINUANCE AND REESTABLISHMENT OF 
WATER SERVICE FOR CONVENIENCE OF OCCUPANT 
OR OWNER; AND PROVIDING FOR EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

RECITALS 
 

1. Pursuant to Ordinance 544 and Ordinance 742, codified under McCleary Municipal 

Code sections 13.24.010 and 13.04.220 respectively, the Council and Mayor may set by written 

resolution fees to be charged for verbal and written requests made by occupants or owners of 

property for the discontinuance or turn-on of water or power services for convenience purposes. 

2. The fees set forth in this Resolution have been established after careful 

consideration by the Mayor and Council, after consultation with City staff.  The fees reflect the 

minimum level necessary to adequately compensate City staff for the services requested.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS BY THE CITY COUNCIL    

OF THE CITY OF McCLEARY, THE MAYOR SIGNING IN AUTHENTICATION   

THEREOF: 

 SECTION I:  On and after the effective date of this Resolution, the following fees will be 

charged for the discontinuance or turn-on of water or power service requested by an occupant or 

owner of property more than once in a billing cycle for the convenience of an occupant or owner 

of said property.  The City of McCleary monthly billing cycle runs from the 16th to the 15th of the 

following month. 



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 2      CITY OF McCLEARY            
02/04/2019                 100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        
CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

1. Discontinuance or turn-on of water or power service during normal business hours 

(8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday):     $50.00 

2. Discontinuance or turn-on of water or power service outside of normal business hours 

(8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday): $150.00 

SECTION II:   The provisions of this Resolution, including the fee structure, shall be 

effective as of 12:01 a.m. upon the day following adoption hereof. 

SECTION III:  Any Resolution in conflict with this Resolution shall be repealed as it 

relates to fees charged for discontinuance or turn-on of water service for the convenience of an 

occupant or owner of property. 

PASSED THIS _____ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2019, by the City Council of the City of 

McCleary, and signed in authentication thereof this _____ day of February, 2019.  

CITY OF McCLEARY: 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
BRENDA ORFFER, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
WENDY COLLINS, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRISTOPHER JOHN COKER, City Attorney 
 


